

Service MASTER Restore

Brought to you by:
Your local fire department
&
SERVICEMASTER RECOVERY SERVICES

www.smrecover.com | 800-559-9070

PREFACE AND DISCLAIMER

The purpose of this brochure is to help victims of fire damage protect their assets and return to "life as usual" as soon as possible after a fire disaster, however large or small.

NOTHING HEREIN IS INTENDED TO IMPLY AN ENDORSEMENT BY YOUR LOCAL FIRE DEPARTMENT, OR GOVERNMENT OFFICALS AT LEVEL, OF SERVICEMASTER DISASTER RESTORATION SERVICES OR ANY OTHER DISASTER RESTORATION CONTRACTOR NAMED IN THIS BROCHURE.

You are advised, however, to seek and obtain the services of a qualified professional contractor in a disaster restoration and protection of your property, performed, where required, according to federal, state, and local safety and building codes.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

The First 24 Hours	5
Insurance Information	7
If You Are Not Insured	8
Valuing Your Property	9
Adjusting the Loss	10
Replacement of Valuable Documents and Records	11
Salvage Hints	12
Money Replacement	1
Tax Information	16
Common Questions	17
Important Phone Numbers	18



AFTER THE FIRE!

Returning to Normal

Recovering from a fire can be a physically and mentally draining process. When fire strikes, lives are suddenly turned around. Often, the hardest part is knowing where to begin and who to contact. Your local fire department has gathered the following information to assist you in this time of need. Action on some of the suggestions will need to be taken immediately. Some actions may be needed in the future while others will be ongoing. The purpose of this information is to give you the assistance needed to assist you as you begin rebuilding your life.



The First 24 Hours

Securing Yourself and the Site

As the victim of a fire, plan on staying with friends or relatives one day or more, depending on the extent of the smoke and fire damage. The fire department can help you by:

- Contacting your insurance company to determine a plan of action. Your insurance company will assist you with:
- Contact your agent to review what type of coverage you have and how much.
- temporary housing
- food
- medicine
- eyeglasses
- clothing
- other essential items lost in the fire

Cautions

- You must be careful when entering the damaged site. Fires can rekindle from hidden; smoldering remains.
- Normally, the fire department will see utilities (water, electricity, and natural
 gas) are safe to use or are disconnected before they leave the site, do not
 attempt to turn on utilities.
- You should be watchful for structural damage caused by the fire. Roofs and floors may be damaged and subject to collapse.
- Food, beverages, and medicine exposed to heat, smoke, soot, and water should not be consumed.





Leaving Your Home

- First, make sure you contact your local fire department to let it know the site will be unoccupied.
- Have your neighbors keep a watchful eye on the property in case of vandalism and forced entry.
- In some cases, it may be necessary to board up openings to discourage trespassers.
- Beginning immediately, save receipts for any money you spend. These receipts are important in showing the insurance company what money you have spent related to your fire loss and for verifying losses claimed on your income tax.

	If it is safe to do so, try to locate the following items:
	$\hfill\Box$ identification, such as driver's licenses and Social Security cards
	\square insurance information
	\square medication information
	$\hfill\Box$ eyeglasses, hearing aids or other prosthetic devices
	$\hfill\square$ valuables, such as credit cards, bank books, cash, and jewelry
	There are many people/entities that should be notified of your relocation,
	including:
	\square your insurance agent/company
	$\hfill\Box$ your mortgage company (also inform them of the fire)
	$\ \square$ your family and friends
	□ your employer
	\square your child's school
	\square your post office
	□ your delivery services
	$\hfill \square$ your fire and police departments
	□-your utility companies
,	Do not throw away damaged goods until an inventory is made. All damages

- are taken into consideration in developing your insurance claim.
- If you are considering contracting for inventory or repair services, discuss your plans with your insurance agent/company first.







Insurance Information

If you are insured, your insurance will be the most important component in recovering from a fire loss. Several coverages are available such as homeowner's, tenant's, or condominium owner's insurance policies. Your insurance policy is a contract between you and the insurer. The insurer promises to do certain things for you. In turn, you have certain obligations. Among your duties after a fire loss would be to give immediate notice of the loss to the insurance company or the insurer's agent.

Protect the property from further damage by making sensible or necessary repairs such as boarding up/securing, winterizing, water extraction and drying out the home. Take reasonable precautions against loss, such as draining water lines in winter if the house will be unoccupied for some time. Work with your insurance company to make an inventory of damaged personal property showing in detail the quantity, description, original purchase price, purchase date, damage estimate and replacement cost. Your insurance company will provide you with its inventory paperwork.



Cooperate with the insurer or his/her adjuster by exhibiting the damaged property. Submit, within the time required by your insurance company, a formal statement of loss.

Such a statement should include:

- The time and cause of loss, if known
- The names and addresses of those who have an interest in the property: these might include the mortgage holder, a separated or divorced spouse or a lien holder.
- Building plans and specifications of the original home and a detailed estimate for repairs.
- The damage inventory mentioned above.
- Receipts for additional living expenses and loss of use claims.

Keep in mind the contracts you sign with Restoration Companies are between you and the company. Once you sign up with a company you are financially responsible for all cost in restoring your home. A good practice is to have a written scope of work that will be performed by the contractor before starting the rebuilding process. Always get financial details upfront and approved before any major services are performed. Your insurance adjuster will be a source of important information in reviewing both the scope of work and the insurance coverage available to you before you enter restoration contracts.

If You Are Not Insured

Your recovery from a fire loss may be based upon your own resources and help from your community.

- Private organizations that may be sources of aid or information:
- · American Red Cross
- Salvation Army
- Religious organizations
- · Department of social services
- Civic organizations
- State or municipal emergency services office
- Non-profit crisis counseling centers





Valuing Your Property

A pre-fire inventory along with a videotape of all your property could prove to be a valuable record when making your claim.

When adjusting your fire loss or in claiming a casualty loss on your Federal income tax, you will have to deal with various viewpoints on the value of your property. Some terms used are listed below:

- Your "personal valuation" is your attachment to, and personal evaluation of
 property lost in a fire. Personal items have a certain sentimental value. This
 term is not meant to belittle the value of the items to you but is used to
 separate feelings about the value from objective measures of value. It will be
 objective measures of value, which you, the insurer, and the Internal
 Revenue Service will use as a common ground.
- The "Replacement Cost Value" is an important element in establishing an item's final value and receipts will help verify the cost price.
- "Fair Market Value" before the fire also is expressed as "actual cash value."
 This is what you could have gotten for the item if you had sold it the day before the fire. Its price would reflect its cost at purchase and the wear and tear it sustained since then. Insurance companies have a pre-determined list of values based on age and condition. Depreciation is the formal term to express the amount of value an item loses over a period.
- "Value after the fire" is sometimes called the item's "salvage value".
- The cost to replace the item with a like, but not necessarily identical, item is the "replacement cost."



Adjusting the Loss

"Loss adjustment" is the process of establishing the value of the damaged property. This is the result of a joint effort among several parties. Basic parties to the process are the owner or occupant and the insurance company and its representatives. The owner or occupant is required by the insurance contract to prepare an inventory and cooperate in the loss evaluation process. The insurer may send an adjuster who is a permanent member of the insurer's staff, or the company may hire an independent adjuster to act in its behalf. It is the insurance adjuster's job, as a representative of the insurance company, to monitor and assist in the loss evaluation process and to bring the loss to pre-loss condition.

Ultimately, the choice of which damage restoration company to hire is yours. These firms provide a range of services that may include some or all the following:

- Securing the site against further damage
- Estimating structural damage
- Repairing structural damage
- · Estimating the cost to repair or renew items of personal property
- Packing, transportation, and storage of household items
- Securing appropriate cleaning or repair subcontractors
- · Storing repaired items until needed

It is important to coordinate with both the insurance adjuster and contracting company for services to be estimated. In every policy it is the customer's responsibility to mitigate your losses to prevent further damage to your home, this could include having your home boarded up/secured, winterizing the home, water extraction and drying services. These services would be considered Emergency Services only.

Expectations from a restoration contractor are to prevent further damage to the home and are expected once signing the contract. Review the contractors' references relating to losses like yours to verify that immediate services can be met.





Replacement of Valuable Documents and Records

Here is a checklist of documents you will need to replace if they have been destroyed, and who to contact for information on the replacement process

ITEM	WHO TO CONTACT
Driver's license, auto registration	Department of Motor Vehicles
Bank books (checking, savings, etc.)	Your bank, as soon as possible
Insurance policies	Your insurance agent
Military discharge papers	Department of Veterans Affairs
Passports	Passport service
Birth, death & marriage certificates	Bureau of Records in the appropriate state
Divorce papers	Circuit court where decree was issued
Social Security or Medicare cards	Local Social Security office
Credit cards	The issuing companies, as soon as possible
Titles to deeds	Records department of the locality in which the
	property is located
Stocks and bonds	Issuing company or your broker
Wills	Your lawyer
Medical records	Your doctor
Warranties	Issuing company
Income tax records	The IRS Center where filed or your accountant
Prepaid burial contract	Issuing company
Animal registration papers	Humane Society, local city clerk
Citizenship papers	U.S. Immigration and Naturalization Service
Mortgage papers	Lending institution

Salvage Hints

NOTE: These "salvage hints" may or may not work for you. If you have any questions or doubts as to whether these hints fit your specific situation, ask your damage restoration professional before you attempt them.

Clothing - Smoke odor and soot sometimes can be washed from clothing. Restoration drycleaners are available to assist in determining if clothing is salvageable unsalvageable. Many restoration drycleaners offer emergency services to return necessary clothing to a pre-loss condition in short period of time.

* Restoration contractors do not recommend cleaning any items of value after a fire due to the many components associated with a fire. Many items can be damaged once touched are unable to be restored to a usable condition. If hiring a contractor, the benefits are that they will handle all items appropriately and not cause any additional damage. These next recommendations are not necessarily the view of the restoration contractor.

Cooking Utensils - Most cooking utensils consisting of metal can be cleaned normally and polished accordingly. Items that contain wood or plastic should be evaluated with the restoration contractor for salvageability

Rugs and Carpet - Wet floor coverings/throw rugs must be handled properly to prevent further damage to the structure and to the item. Most wet carpeting and padding will be handled in the emergency services. Many area rugs will have to be inventoried, cleaned, and deodorized offsite by your chosen contractor.

Walls and Ceilings - Wall and ceiling cleaning can be difficult after a petroleum-based fire. This soot is generally oily, and most wall and ceiling surfaces are not salvageable after cleaning. Generally, a shellac-based primer is needed to seal in odor and stains. Complex based fires offer different challenges such as: degree of soot, sheen of paint, and type of texture. These surfaces can be cleaned to a pre-loss condition, but not without appropriate cleaning agents by a restoration contractor.

Wallpaper - Wallpaper can be repaired by using a commercial paste to re-paste loose edges or sections. You can buy a like paste by contacting your wallpaper dealer or installer for information on wallpaper cleaners. Washable wallpaper can be washed like an ordinary wall.

Furniture - Do not dry your furniture in the sun. The wood will warp and twist out of shape. Clear off the mud and dirt by scrubbing with a stiff brush and a cleaning solution. You can also rub the wood surface with a 4/0 steel wool pad dipped in liquid polishing wax, wipe with a soft cloth and then buff. When you clean your drawers, remove them, and let dry thoroughly so there will be no sticking when replaced. Wet wood can decay and mold, so allow it to dry thoroughly. To provide adequate ventilation, you can open doors and windows.



Leather and Books – Most leather items affected by water should be brought to a professional that handles these items to prevent further damage. These items are generally of high value and need the attention of a qualified professional. Please consult your restoration contractor for a name of a service that can handle these items. Most restoration dry cleaners have resources to handle these items.

Locks and Hinges – Through the process of emergency pre-cleaning these items can be addressed at that time. You can notify the restoration contractor of any hinges or locks that require special attention. These are cleaned to prevent corrosion from the soot.

Electrical Appliances – Appliances exposed to water or steam should not be used until you have a service representative check them, especially true of electrical appliances. In addition, steam can remove the lubricant from some moving parts. If the fire department turned off your gas or power during the fire, call the electric or gas company to restore these services. DO NOT TRY TO DO IT YOURSELF. Many times, the fire department will not restore utilities until inspected and approved by the city building inspector.

Many appliances affected by smoke and water will be deemed unsalvageable due to warranty specifications by the manufacturer. These items will require an inspection by a restoration electronics professional or manufacturer's service technician to determine salvageability

Food – Restoration contractors in many instances do the not recommend consumption of any foods or medications that withstood a fire. You should work with vour insurer to prepare a comprehensive inventory ensuring all food/ medications are accounted for. All fires are going to need the input of the insurance company and the contractor to come to decisions regarding these items.

Flooring – When water gets underneath linoleum; it can cause odors and warp the subfloor. If this happens, the linoleum can be attempted to be removed with a floor scraper. Glue residues can be scraped or removed chemically. This method is not recommended for the homeowner. A local contractor may have to test the flooring or the glue to determine if it is safe to remove or must be remediated.

Money Replacement

You should be cautious with burned money and handle as little as possible. Attempt to encase each bill or portion of a bill in plastic wrap for preservation. Should your money be only half-burned or less (if half or more is still intact), you can take the remainder to your regional Federal Reserve Bank for replacement. Ask your bank for the nearest one. Or you can mail the burned or torn money by "registered mail, return receipt requested" to:

Department of the Treasury
Bureau of Engraving and Printing
Office of Currency Standards
P. O. Box 37048
Washington, DC 20013

Mutilated or melted coins can be taken to your regional Federal Reserve Bank or mailed by "registered mail, return receipt requested" to:

Superintendent

U.S. Mint

P. O. Box 400

Philadelphia, PA 19105

If your U.S. Savings Bonds have been destroyed or mutilated, you must obtain Department of Treasury Form PD F 1048 (I) from your bank or www.ustreas.gov and mail to:

Department of the Treasury Bureau of Public Debt Saving Bonds Operations P. O. Box 1328 Parkersburg, WV 26106-1328



Tax Information

Check with an accountant, tax consultant or the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) about special benefits for people with limited financial needs after a fire loss.

Department of Revenue (State) – (414) 227-4000 IRS (Federal) 271-3780

Common Questions

A Word About Fire Department Operations

Q. Why are windows broken or holes cut in the roof?

As a fire burns, it moves upward then outward. Breaking the windows and/or cutting holes in the roof (called "ventilation") slows the damaging outward movement, helps remove blinding smoke that obscures the actual fire, and enables firefighters to fight the fire more efficiently. The result of this action is less damage to the structure in the long run.

Q. Why are holes cut in walls?

This is done so that the fire department is sure that the fire is completely out, and that there is no fire inside the walls or other hidden places.

Q. Is it possible to obtain a copy of the fire report?

Yes. A fire report is a public document and is available at your local fire department, usually subject to the cost of duplicating the report.



TESTIMONIALS

In the past 5 years, we've had the opportunity to utilize ServiceMaster Recovery Services for disaster clean up. From flooding to trauma situations, they have provided guick, professional response and results. ServiceMaster covers us from our corporate offices in Milwaukee to our facilities in Alabama, Pennsylvania, and Ouebec, Canada.

As a risk manager, I have come to rely on their 866-Recover corporate priority program. Regardless of the location or situation, I can count on their national and international network to provide consistently excellent service.

Working with Mark Cyganiak, our local point of contact and franchise owner has meant one call and done. Logistics, project updates, reports and billing are coordinated by Mark. The ease of the arrangement results in less follow up or frustration by my team.

Since Rexnord has enrolled in the program, it has saved us time and money, giving us peace of mind that the job will be taken care of with one call. It is without reservation that we recommend Mark and ServiceMaster Recovery Services to other risk managers seeking an emergency services partner that is easy to work with and committed to delivering a quality service experience.

Regards, M. Curry Director, Risk Management **REXNORD**

Just a note to let you know how appreciative I am of your thoughtfulness, care and professionalism you provided to me on the fire cleanup, inventory and information on what to do next during a real trying time! Your help and knowledge was so spot on and helpful with dealing with everything! Couldn't have done it without you! Very comforting knowing I was important enough to you and was treated like family. Work crews were very caring, courteous, thoroughly focused on doing a great job!

Thank you again and God bless! S. W. Swan, Swan Furniture and Interiors





IMPORTANT PHONE NUMBERS

EMERGENCY NEEDS (Fuel, Shelter, Food)

Emergency Services	911
Health and Human Services Information	211
Non-emergency Police Questions/Problems/etc	311
Milwaukee County Human Services (assistance)	(414) 278-4143
Waukesha County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 548-7212
Racine County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 638-6754
Ozaukee County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 284-8200
Sheboygan County Human Services (assistance)	(920) 459-3151
Manitowoc County Human Services (assistance)	(920) 683-4230
Washington County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 335-4600
Marinette County Human Services (assistance)	(715) 732-7700
Walworth County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 741-3200
Racine County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 638-6353
Kenosha County Human Services (assistance)	(262) 697-4500
Mental Health Emergency Services	(414) 289-6874
American Red Cross	(414) 342-8680
United Way of Greater Milwaukee	(414) 263-8100
Salvation Army	(414) 462-5226
First Call for Help	(414) 276-8747
Travelers Aid (Community Advocates)	(414) 449-4777
St. Benedicts Community Meal	(414) 271-0135
Shelter Hotline	(414) 276-0764
American Red Cross Southeastern Wisconsin	(414) 342-8680
American Red Cross Northeastern Wisconsin	(920) 231-3590
American Red Cross Southwestern Wisconsin	(877) 618-6628
Kenosha County Emergency Management	(262) 605-7900
The Salvation Army Kenosha	(262) 564-0286
WE Energies 24-Hour to report electrical outages	(800) 662-4797
WE Energies 24-Hour to report Gas Leaks / Emergencies	(800) 261-5325
Milwaukee County Emergency Management	(414) 257-4709

DOCUMENTS (Birth certificate, driver's license, social security card, etc.)

Wisconsin Department of Transportation	(608) 266-2353
Social Security Administration (toll free)	(800) 772-1213
Veterans Affairs -Regional Office ((800) 827-1000
Wisconsin Department of Records	(414) 278-4002
Post Office (passports)	(414) 270-2000

RESTORATION COMPANIES

ServiceMaster - Kenosha County	(000) -00 000
,	(262) 782-3335
ServiceMaster - Racine County	(262) 763-8228
ServiceMaster - Walworth County	(262) 348-9070
ServiceMaster - Rock County	(608) 752-6717
ServiceMaster - Green County	(608) 328-2111
ServiceMaster - Oconomowoc	(262) 569-9070
ServiceMaster - Menomonee Falls	
	(262) 251-7590
ServiceMaster - Greater Waukesha	(262) 542-9555
ServiceMaster - Southwest Milwaukee County	(414) 421-4940
ServiceMaster - West Allis / Wauwatosa / New Berlin	(262) 782-3335
ServiceMaster - Disaster Restoration	(262) 782-3933
ServiceMaster - Sheboygan County	(920) 783-2233
ServiceMaster - Manitowoc County	(920) 682-8668
ServiceMaster - Marinette, Menominee, Marquette	(715) 735-5422



INSURANCE PHONE NUMBERS:

AAA	800-222-6424
Acuity	800-242-7666 (0)
Alacrity	866-953-3220
Allstate	888-237-4154
American Family	800-692-6326
ASI	866-ASI-LOSS
Auto Club	877-210-5678
Auto Owners	608-249-1509
Chubb	800-252-4670
Erie	800-367-3743
Esurance	800-378-7262
Farmers / Foremost	888-425-2467
Guide One	877-448-4331
Hanover	800-628-0250
The Hartford	800-243-5860
Homesite	866-621-4823
Horace Mann	800-999-1030
Integrity Insurance	920-734-4511
Kemper	888-252-2799
Liberty Mutual	800-225-2467
MetLife	800-854-6011
National Water	888-521-4679
Nationwide	800-421-3535
Pekin	309-346-1161
Progressive	866-274-5677
Safeco	855-212-3227
Secura	800-318-2136
State Farm	844-458-4300 (0)
Travelers	800-225-4144
USAA	800-531-8722
West Bend Mutual	877-922-5246

Brian Pagliaroni Director of Emergency Services 262-620-3736 Franchise # 3825



I am a Career Firefighter with the Great Lakes Fire Department, where I hold the rank of Lieutenant.

I have an extensive history of working in the public safety industry. Skilled in Vehicle Extrication, Fire Department Management, Emergency Medical Services (EMS) to include Advanced Life Support, and Structural Fire Fighting. I also hold the position of Union President for Local F 37 (IAFF).

I am employed by ServiceMaster as Director of Emergency Services out of New Berlin, Wisconsin. I served in the Wisconsin Army National Guard where I served in two campaigns, Operation Noble Badger and the war in Iraq (Operation Iraqi Freedom/ Operation Enduring Freedom) for which I am a Veteran of.

I enjoy watching Hockey and Baseball in my free times along with Hunting and spending times outdoor. I am married with four boys who keep me busy with travel hockey. I am currently the President of the Kenosha Thunder High School Hockey Team.

- 20 years in the Fire Service
- Associates Degree in Fire Science from Columbia Southern University
- High School Graduate of Bradford High School (Kenosha, WI)
- Hazmat Technician
- Firefighter 1 & 2
- · Driver Operator Pumper
- · Driver Operator Aerial
- Fire Officer 1 & 2
- Fire Inspector 1
- Hazmat IC

- Hazmat IC
- Instructor 1 & 2
- NIMS 100
- NIMS 200
- NIMS 300
- NIMS 400
- NIMS 700
- NIMS 800
- Paramedic
- ACLS
- CPR
- Operations Level Rope, Trench, Confined Space and Building Collapse

I look forward to helping you in your time of need.



Jeff Marron Director of Emergency Services 262-894-5675 Franchise # 3825



I am committed to long term relationships with my clients. These relationships are based on honesty, trust, quality of services and fair price. My goal is to exceed expectations through dedication to quality of craftsmanship, personal involvement, and attention to finish detail, and superior before and after service to our clients. I understand that we are employed by our clients, and as such, we recognize that satisfying our customers in an honest and professional manner is the surest way to continue our growth and prosperity far into the future.

- 10 Years' Experience First Responder and Emergency Services
- · Homeland Security Certified in Federal Emergency Management
- National Incident Management System Certified
- Hazmat Certified
- CPR Certified
- Hippa Certified
- DAAT-Defensive and Arrest Tactics Certified
- · St Mary School Board Member
- Youth Sports Board Member



